
RESOLUTION 

(Lago Resort & Casino, LLC) 

A regular meeting of Seneca County Industrial Development Agency on December 10, 2015, at 

12:00 p.m. (noon). 
The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit: 

Resolution No. 2015/14 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SENECA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) TO (i) UNDERTAKE A CERTAIN 

PROJECT (AS DEFINED BELOW) FOR THE BENEFITOF LAGO RESORT & 

CASINO LLC (THE “COMPANY”), (ii) NEGOTIATE, EXECUTE AND DELIVER 

A LEASE AGREEMENT, LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, AGENCY AGREEMENT, 

TAX AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS, (iii) PROVIDE FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE TO THE COMPANY IN THE FORM OF (a) A SALES AND USE TAX 

EXEMPTION FOR PURCHASES AND RENTALS RELATED TO THE 

UNDERTAKING OF THE PROJECT, (b) A PARTIAL REAL PROPERTY TAX 

ABATEMENT UNDER A TAX AGREEMENT, AND (c) A MORTGAGE 

RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION FOR FINANCING RELATED TO THE 

PROJECT; AND(iv) EXECUTE A  MORTGAGE  AND RELATED  DOCUMENTS 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York, as 

amended, and Chapter 63 of the Laws of 1972 of the State of New  York, as amended (hereinafter 

collectively called the "Act"), the SENECA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

(hereinafter, the "Agency") was created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell property for the 

purpose of, among other things, acquiring, constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and 

commercial facilities as authorized by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, LAGO RESORT & CASINO, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,  for itself 

or on behalf of an entity to be formed by it or on its behalf (the "Company") has submitted an application 

(the "Application"), a copy of which is on file with the Agency, requesting the Agency's assistance with 

respect to a certain project (the "Project") consisting of: (i) the acquisition of approximately 84 acres of 

land within the Town of Tyre in the area east of New York State Route 414 and north of the New York 

State Thruway (being tax map number 12.00-01-36) (the "Land"), (ii) the construction on the Land of an 

approximately 95,000 square-foot casino containing approximately 85 gaming tables and approximately 

2,000 slot machines, plus an additional  75,000 square-foot of support and back of house space, a six-story, 

approximately  153,000square-foot hotel containing approximately  205 rooms, an approximately  12,500 

square-foot state-of the art full-service spa, and approximately  2,500 square-feet of  pool area,  an 

assortment of restaurants totaling approximately  28,000 square-feet, an approximately 40,000 square-foot 

event center, an approximately 4,000 square-foot child care center, concierge service, a parking garage with 

parking spaces to accommodate approximately  805 vehicles, surface parking for approximately 2,403 cars, 

buses or RVs, an approximately 9,000 square foot central plant including and adjacent maintenance facility 

and related amenities (collectively, the "Improvements"), and (iii) the acquisition and installation by the 

Company in and around the Improvements of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal 

property (the "Equipment" and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the "Facility"); and 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted on November 16, 2015 (the "Inducement Resolution"), the 

Agency (i) accepted the Application, and (ii) directed that a public hearing be held pursuant to General 

Municipal Law section 859-a; and 
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WHEREAS, pursuant to General Municipal Law section 859-a, on Monday, November 30, 2015, 

at 6:00 p.m. at Magee Fire Department, 1807 Route 318, Town of Tyre, New York, the Agency held a 

public hearing with respect to the Project and the proposed Financial Assistance (as defined in the 

Inducement Resolution) being contemplated by the Agency (the “Public Hearing”) whereat interested 

parties were provided a reasonable opportunity, both orally and in writing, to present their views; and 

 

WHEREAS, copies of the minutes of the Public Hearing, written submissions and the notice of the 

Public Hearing published and forwarded to the affected taxing jurisdictions at least then (10) days prior to 

said Public Hearing are attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency has retained a consultant to provide a cost-benefit analysis with respect to 

the Project and the contemplated Financial Assistance and has reviewed the results of said cost-benefit 

analysis; and 

 

WHEREAS, in reviewing the Application, the Agency has considered (i) the nature of the Project, 

(ii) the economic condition of the area and the multiplying effect the Project will have on the area; (iii) the 

extent to which the Project will create permanent, private sector jobs; (iv) the estimated value of tax 

exemptions contemplated to be provided; (v) the economic impact of the Project and proposed tax 

exemptions on affected taxing jurisdictions; (vi) the impact of the Project on existing and proposed 

businesses and economic development projects in the vicinity of the Project; (vii) the amount of private 

sector investment likely to be generated by the Project; (vii) the extent to which the Project will require the 

provision of additional services; (viii) the extent to which the Project will provide additional sources of 

revenue for the municipalities and school district in which the Project is located; and (ix) the benefit of the 

Project not otherwise available to the area in which the Project is located; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Tax Agreement (as defined in the Inducement Resolution) as so contemplated 

provides for a schedule of payments to be made by the Company to the Agency; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to formally approve the schedule of payments to be so made 

pursuant to the Tax Agreement, which schedule is attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Tax Agreement 

Payment Schedule”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution (i) acknowledging that the Public Hearing 

was held in compliance with the Act, (ii) authorizing Financial Assistance to the Company in excess of 

$100,000, (iii) authorizing the execution and delivery of the Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement, 

the Agent Agreement, the Tax Agreement (as all of the foregoing are defined in the Inducement Resolution) 

and all documents related thereto, and (iv) authorizing the execution and delivery of one or more mortgages 

and related documents related to the financing of the Project. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Agency hereby finds and determines: 

 (a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 

convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all powers 

granted to it under the Act; and 

 (b) The Project will promote employment opportunities and prevent economic 

deterioration in Seneca County, and otherwise further the purposes of the Agency, and that by entering into 

the Tax Agreement and otherwise providing financial assistance for the Project the Agency will be 

increasing employment opportunities in Seneca County and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Act; 
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and 

 (c) The Project includes components providing for participation by the general public 

in recreation activities, and facilities and appurtenances thereto promoting the use of such components; and 

 (d) The Facility constitutes both a commercial facility and a recreational facility as 

contemplated by the Act, and a “project” as such term is defined in the Act; and 

 (e) The leasing of the Facility from and the subleasing back of the Facility to the 

Company will promote and maintain job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of 

the citizens of the County of Seneca and State of New York and improve their standard of living and thereby 

serve the public purposes of the Act; and 

 (f) Based upon the representations and warranties of the Company, the Facility 

conforms with local zoning laws and planning regulations of the County of Seneca and all regional and 

local land use plans for the area in which the Facility is located; and 

 (g) Based upon the representations and warranties of the Company, the Facility and 

the operations conducted thereon will not cause or result in the violation of the health, labor or other laws 

of the United States of America, the State of new York or the County of Seneca; and 

 (h) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to acquire an interest in the 

Facility; and 

 (i) The Lease Agreement will be an effective instrument whereby the Company leases 

the Facility to the Agency; and 

 (j) The Leaseback Agreement will be an effective instrument whereby the Agency 

subleases the Facility back to the Company; and 

 (k) The Tax Agreement will be an effective instrument whereby the Agency and the 

Company set forth the terms and conditions of their agreement regarding the Company’s payment of real 

property taxes; and 

 (l) The Agent Agreement will be an effective instrument whereby the Agency and the 

Company set forth the terms and conditions of their agreement regarding the Agency’s appointment of the 

Company as its agent for the Project; and 

 (m) The Public Hearing held by the Agency on November 30, 2015 concerning the 

Project and the Financial Assistance was duly held in accordance with the Act, including but not limited to 

the giving of at least ten (10) days published notice of the Public Hearing (such notice also provided to the 

Chief Executive Officer of each affected tax jurisdiction), affording interested parties a reasonable 

opportunity, both orally and in writing, to present their views with respect to the Project. 

 

Section 2. In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to (a) acquire a 

leasehold interest in the facility pursuant to the Lease Agreement, (b) sublease the Facility back to the 

Company pursuant to the Leaseback Agreement, (c) authorize the undertaking of the Project and appoint 

the Company as its agent for purposes of acquiring, constructing and/or equipping the Facility, subject to 

the Company entering into the Agent Agreement, and (d) provide financial assistance for the Project in the 

form of (i) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the undertaking of the Project, 

subject to the terms and conditions of the Agent Agreement, the total value of the exemption not to exceed 

$16,000,00, (ii) a partial real property tax abatement, subject to the terms and conditions of the Tax 

Agreement, and (iii) a mortgage recording tax exemption for financing related to the Project. 

 

Section 3. The Agency finds and determines that the Tax Agreement Payment Schedule was 

developed by the Agency with input from representatives of the Seneca County Board of Supervisors, and 

from the Town of Tyre assessor following review of the appraisal of the Facility prepared for assessment 

purposes for the Town of Tyre by Cushman & Wakefield, Inc. (John R. Mako, MAL, SRA) dated 

September 30, 2014, so as to establish a fixed dollar payment schedule for tax certainty for the applicable 

jurisdictions and the Company, and otherwise to further the public purposes of the Agency, and hereby 

approves the Tax Agreement Payment Schedule, and determines to provide a real property tax exemption 
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and related in lieu of payment schedule pursuant to the terms of the Tax Agreement and the Tax Agreement 

Payment Schedule.   

Section 4. The Agency hereby finds and confirms that the partial real property tax abatement 

provided pursuant to the Tax Agreement and Tax Agreement Payment Schedule conforms to the Agency’s 

uniform tax exemption policy. 

 

Section 5. The foregoing resolutions notwithstanding, the Agency’s appointment of the 

Company as its agent for purposes of undertaking the Project is subject to and conditioned upon the 

Company’s agreement, in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law, that, 

if the Company receives New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits ("sales and use tax 

exemption benefits") from the Agency, and it is determined that: (i) the Company is not entitled to the sales 

and use tax exemption benefits; (ii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits are in excess of the amounts 

authorized by the Agency to be taken by the Company; (iii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits are for 

property or services not authorized by the Agency as part of the Project; or (iv) the sales and use tax 

exemption benefits are taken in cases where the Company fails to comply with a material term or condition 

to use property or services in the manner approved by the Agency in connection with the Project, then the 

Company will (A) cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to recover or recapture any sales and use tax 

exemption benefits, and (B) promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency that the Agency demands 

in connection therewith, and that in the event that the Company fails to pay over such amounts to the 

Agency, the New York State Tax Commissioner may assess and determine New York State and local sales 

and use taxes due from the Company, together with any relevant penalties and interest due on such amounts. 

 

Section 6. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or the Executive Director of the Agency are 

hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Lease Agreement, Leaseback 

Agreement, the Agent Agreement, Tax Agreement in substantially the forms presented to this meeting, and 

all documents related thereto, with such additions, changes, variations, omissions and insertions as the 

Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director, shall approve, which agreements may provide for the 

forfeiture and/or recapture of financial assistance where projected employment goals have not been met.  

The execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director of the Agency shall 

constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 

Section 7. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director of the Agency are hereby 

authorized , on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver any mortgage, assignment of leases and rents, 

security agreement, UCC-1 Financing Statements and all documents reasonably  contemplated  by these 

resolutions  and required  by any lender or financial institution identified by the Company providing 

financing for the Project, all with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions as the Chairman, Vice 

Chairman and/or Executive Director of the Agency shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman, 

Vice Chairman and/or Executive Director of the Agency to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval, 

provided in all events recourse against the Agency is limited to the Agency's interest in the Project. 

 

Section 8. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and 

directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required to execute and 

deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to 

do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent 

acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by 

the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of 

the Agency. 

 

Section 9. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately. 
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The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolutions was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 

resulted as follows: · 

 

 Yea Nay Abstain Absent 

G. Thomas Macinski X    

Steven Brusso X    

Robert E. Kernan, Jr. X    

Cindy Garlick-Lorenzetti X    

Thomas L. Kime X    

Bruce Johnson X    

Stephen Wadhams    X 

Valerie Bassett X    

Erica Paolicelli X    

 

The Resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 
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Exhibit A 

[NOTICE DOCUMENTS] 

Attached 

 

7



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

TAX AGREEMENT PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 

SCHOOL 

YEAR 

COUNTY 

& TOWN 

YEAR 

TAX 

PAYMENT 

TAX 

PAYMENT 

DATE 

2017/2018 2018 $685,000 June 15, 

2017 

2018/2019 2019 $885,000 June 15, 

2018 

2019/2020 2020 $985,000 June 15, 

2019 

2020/2021 2021 $1,085,000 June 15, 

2020 

2021/2022 2022 $1,185,000 June 15, 

2021 

2022/2023 2023 $1,285,000 June 15, 

2022 

2023/2024 2024 $1,385,000 June 15, 

2023 

2024/2025 2025 $1,485,000 June 15, 

2024 

2025/2026 2026 $1,585,000 June 15, 

2025 

2026/2027 2027 $1,685,000 June 15, 

2026 

2027/2028 2028 $2,321,690 June 15, 

2027 

2028/2029 2029 $2,372,424 June 15, 

2028 

2029/2030 2030 $2,424,172 June 15, 

2029 

2030/2031 2031 $2,476,956 June 15, 

2030 

2031/2032 2032 $2,530,795 June 15, 

2031 

2032/2033 2033 $2,585,711 June 15, 

2032 

2033/2034 2034 $2,641,725 June 15, 

2033 

2034/2035 2035 $2,698,859 June 15, 

2034 

2035/2036 2036 $2,757,137 June 15, 

2035 

2036/2037 2037 $2,816,579 June 15, 

2036 
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MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING 

LAGO CASINO & RESORT 

TOWN OF TYRE  

MAGEE FIRE HALL 

1807 Route 318  

Tyre, NY   

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2015 

6:00 PM  

ATTENDEES: Robert Aronson, IDA Executive Director; G. Thomas Macinski, IDA  

Chairman; Steven Brusso, IDA Vice Chairman; Cindy Garlick 

Lorenzetti; IDA Board Member and Supervisor; Town of Fayette; Ron 

McGreevy;  Supervisor Town of Tyre; Robert Halpin, IDA Legal 

Counsel; Patricia  Jones, IDA Deputy Director, Kelly Kline, IDA 

Executive Assistant;  Tammy B. Figler, Alliance Court Reporter and 37 

attendees as noted  

on attached sign-in sheets. 

A public hearing on assistance being extended to Lago Resort & Casino was opened by 

Robert Aronson, Executive Director to the IDA, at 6:00 p.m. 

Copies of written comments and a transcript of the oral comments are attached. 

After comments were heard the meeting was closed by Mr. Aronson at 7:10pm 

Copies of written comments and a transcript of the oral comments are on file in the Seneca County 

IDA Office.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Robert J. Aronson  

Executive Director 
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·1

·2

·3· ·- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

·4· · · · · · · · · · IN THE MATTER OF

·5· · · ·IN RE:· TOWN OF TYRE LAGO CASINO AND RESORT

·6

·7· · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

·8
· · ·Public Hearing in the Above-Titled Matter:
·9

10

11· ·Location:· · · Magee Fire Department
· · · · · · · · · · 1807 Route 318
12· · · · · · · · · Waterloo, New York 13165

13

14· ·Date:· · · · · November 30, 2015

15

16· ·Time:· · · · · 6:00 p.m.

17

18

19· ·Reported By:· ·TAMMY B. FIGLER

20· · · · · · · · · Alliance Court Reporting, Inc.

21· · · · · · · · · 120 East Avenue, Suite 200

22· · · · · · · · · Rochester, New York 14604

23

24

25
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·1

·2· · · · · · · · · · A P P E A R A N C E S

·3· ·Appearing on Behalf of the Industrial Development

·4· ·Agency:

·5· ·Robert L. Halpin, Esq.

·6· · · The Halpin Firm

·7· · · 4588 Route 224

·8· · · Montour Falls, New York· 14865

·9· · · rhalpin@thehalpinfirm.com

10

11· ·Board Members of the Industrial Development Agency:

12· · · Robert J. Aronson, Executive Director

13· · · Steven Brusso, Vice Chairman

14· · · Thomas Macinski, Executive Director

15· · · · · · · · · · · ·*· · ·*· · ·*

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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·1· · · · · · · · ·P U B L I C· ·H E A R I N G

·2· ·MONDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2015;

·3· · · · · ·(Proceedings in the above-titled matter

·4· · · · · ·commencing at 6:00 p.m.)

·5· · · · · · · · · · · ·*· · ·*· · ·*

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· This is a public hearing of

·7· ·the Seneca County Industrial Development Agency

·8· ·regarding financial assistance by the IDA to the Lago

·9· ·Resort and Casino.

10· · · · · · · ·We will be hearing tonight from people, or

11· ·we'll accept written comments, which we have some from

12· ·all persons with views in favor of or opposed to

13· ·either the proposed financial assistance to the

14· ·company or nature of the facility.

15· · · · · · · ·We're going to ask people to keep their

16· ·comments to five minutes each, and we'll time them,

17· ·and with that we'll open the meeting with the first

18· ·speaker.

19· · · · · · · ·That would be Tom Meyers.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. MEYERS:· To the board members of the

21· ·Seneca County Industrial Agency.· My name is Tom

22· ·Meyers and I'm objecting to any financial assistance

23· ·to be given to Wilmorite or any of its agencies in any

24· ·form, be it loans, leasebacks, tax abatements,

25· ·elimination, reduction or any partial or deferred
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·1· · · · · · · · ·P U B L I C· ·H E A R I N G

·2· ·payment of the actual fairly assessed mortgage tax,

·3· ·sales and/or town/county tax, or any such PILOT

·4· ·agreements offered to the Seneca County Industrial

·5· ·Development Agency.

·6· · · · · · · ·When a private corporation has been

·7· ·petitioning the courts -- has petitioned the courts

·8· ·for failure to complete a state-mandated review

·9· ·designed to protect our water and natural resources,

10· ·but instead makes monetary bribes to avoid the

11· ·judicial system, this should be a red flag to our

12· ·local officials who should not assist them in any way,

13· ·especially financially.

14· · · · · · · ·The attached copies outlines the bribe

15· ·made by Wilmorite attorney, Shawn Griffin, to the ten

16· ·petitioners of the Article 78 lawsuit reported in the

17· ·Finger Lakes Times, November 16, 2015, exposing

18· ·Wilmorite to their offer of hush money in an attempt

19· ·to avoid a proper New York State review and squash the

20· ·opposition to his boss's casino project.· The same

21· ·Harris Beach attorney representing the Seneca County

22· ·IDA in negotiating a tax break while representing

23· ·Wilmorite is a glaring conflict of interest.· That

24· ·corporation should not get any assistance.

25· · · · · · · ·On July 10th, 2015, the courts ultimately
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·1· · · · · · · · ·P U B L I C· ·H E A R I N G

·2· ·ruled that, indeed, Wilmot's environmental review was

·3· ·not -- I'm sorry.· Wilmot's environmental review was

·4· ·flawed and every single approval for the casino was

·5· ·vacated.· The same suit that Shawn Griffin tried to

·6· ·squash.· As a result another review was commenced.

·7· ·This time Wilmot's paid-professional skirted every

·8· ·request by the neighborhood residents to avoid any

·9· ·further studies which would merely protect the

10· ·residents.· What are they afraid of?

11· · · · · · · ·In fact, review and study would ensure

12· ·that the casino impacts of estimated 9,000 visitors

13· ·per day to a small rural community of 900 residents

14· ·would protect residents from permanent risk to their

15· ·safety and property, but instead, Wilmot would rather

16· ·go to court for a second time for ignoring glaring

17· ·adverse impacts.· I caution the IDA to review the

18· ·character of this applicant and his unwillingness to

19· ·stand behind his word to the public saying that he

20· ·would be a, quote, "good neighbor" and "taxpayer."

21· ·Check out his tax record of failed and unpaid

22· ·projects, in particular the Sibley building blight

23· ·that struck the City of Rochester for 18 million

24· ·dollars of back taxes because of a, quote, "deal" and

25· ·a loophole that was cut with the city.
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·1· · · · · · · · ·P U B L I C· ·H E A R I N G

·2· · · · · · · ·And I have copies of emails that were

·3· ·sent, two of them actually, and I'll read you the

·4· ·emails.

·5· · · · · · · ·This document or email is to be used as

·6· ·supporting statements made in our press release to the

·7· ·Finger Lakes Times in regard to the Article 78

·8· ·Petition decision dated September 18, 2014.· Any other

·9· ·use will have to be approved by the Casino Free Tyre's

10· ·attorney.

11· · · · · · · ·Date:· August 7, 2014, at 12:29 p.m.

12· · · · · · · ·From:· Douglas H. Zamelis, Esq.

13· · · · · · · ·Subject:· Report of the settlement offer

14· ·from Wilmorite.

15· · · · · · · ·Dear Desiree, Jim and Other Petitioners:

16· ·I received a call yesterday, while I was in New York

17· ·about to argue a case, from Shawn Harris, the lead

18· ·attorney from Wilmorite.· He asked me, quote, "Is

19· ·there anything that your clients might consider to

20· ·settle the matter or are they dead set on litigating

21· ·the matter to judgment?"

22· · · · · · · ·He said to me, quote, "If there's any way

23· ·you can put your real estate attorney hat on instead

24· ·of your litigator hat on, then I'm the guy to talk

25· ·to."
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·1· · · · · · · · ·P U B L I C· ·H E A R I N G

·2· · · · · · · ·I told him I would pass along the offer to

·3· ·the petitioners and get back to him, but I called him

·4· ·back this morning to feel him out further.

·5· · · · · · · ·Harris responded saying that he has not

·6· ·discussed specifics with his client, but he is

·7· ·confident Wilmorite would be willing to -- would be

·8· ·willing, in exchange for withdrawing the suit, to

·9· ·purchase the petitioners' properties and grant each

10· ·person a life estate that would allow possession and

11· ·residence of the property for the remainder of the

12· ·petitioners' lives.

13· · · · · · · ·Then, again -- then another try again

14· ·8/26, 2014, 10:10 p.m., the night before the hearing.

15· · · · · · · ·From:· Shawn M. Griffin.

16· · · · · · · ·Sent:· Tuesday, August 26th at 10:10 p.m.

17· · · · · · · ·To:· Desiree.

18· · · · · · · ·PS:· For settlement purposes only, and not

19· ·to be used in litigation, if one of your clients wants

20· ·to sell, we will have individual discussions.· You do

21· ·not need to all agree to discuss this with us.· We do

22· ·not need the additional lands, but we want a favorable

23· ·outcome for all willing to work with us.

24· · · · · · · ·If any of your clients want to discuss

25· ·this before the judge issues his decision, please call
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·2· ·me to discuss.· Once a decision is rendered, we will

·3· ·proceed as directed and we will not have further

·4· ·interest in this concept.

·5· · · · · · · ·Your call, as my client wants to minimize

·6· ·any local concerns.

·7· · · · · · · ·Shawn Griffin, Harris Beach, PLLC.

·8· · · · · · · ·If that's not a bribe, I don't know what

·9· ·is.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · ·Next speaker is Catherine Strong.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. STRONG:· This new Seneca County IDA

13· ·application for financial assistance for the Lago

14· ·project suffers from the same fundamental deficiency

15· ·as the first one.· Originally Lago's application

16· ·represented on its face that Lago's financing was

17· ·100 percent in place.· Now the most recent application

18· ·is worded differently with no explanation for the

19· ·change.

20· · · · · · · ·Lago does not need these benefits to

21· ·proceed, because these benefits are not necessary to

22· ·induce the development.· There is no justification

23· ·under the law for the IDA to award benefits.· These

24· ·benefits simply would serve a private rather than

25· ·public purpose.
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·2· · · · · · · ·According to the Location Board in

·3· ·December when the recommendation was made, one of the

·4· ·reasons for the board's decision was because of their

·5· ·stellar financing that they submitted to the State

·6· ·Gaming Commission for a license.

·7· · · · · · · ·Wouldn't it be contrary to your mission as

·8· ·an Industrial Development Agency to give incentives to

·9· ·a project who stated that they didn't need assistance?

10· · · · · · · ·Thank you.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Betty Smith.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. SMITH:· To the board members of the

13· ·IDA:· I am a resident of the Town of Tyre and a

14· ·taxpayer to the Waterloo School District, and I'm

15· ·strongly opposed to the proposed casino plan.

16· · · · · · · ·There are two main taxpayer concerns I

17· ·would like to get into the record tonight for your

18· ·consideration, which are the casino's Community

19· ·Mitigation Plan and the IDA taxpayer revenue giveaway.

20· · · · · · · ·The proposed Wilmot casino project is

21· ·located in the taxing jurisdiction of the Waterloo

22· ·School District and has a large potential to be a

23· ·detriment to the tax base to the communities of all

24· ·three school districts of which Tyre residents pay

25· ·their school taxes:· Clyde-Savannah, Waterloo and
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·2· ·Seneca Falls.

·3· · · · · · · ·With Wilmot using a small town like Tyre,

·4· ·a town using three school districts to ship their kids

·5· ·off to school, shouldn't the plan be broader than the

·6· ·Town of Tyre when it comes to paying for casino

·7· ·impacts?

·8· · · · · · · ·The Community Mitigation Plan was based on

·9· ·a Center For Governmental Research report, a report

10· ·which appears to be highly deficient in its analysis

11· ·of impacts to Tyre, New York, and the surrounding

12· ·towns involved.· It's not really a third-party

13· ·document when the Lago lawyer, Shawn Griffin, is

14· ·involved in the content of the report, potentially

15· ·tainting the report.· He has also been a party to the

16· ·IDA negotiations as counsel for IDA and Wilmorite, a

17· ·blatant conflict.

18· · · · · · · ·Where are the school impacts?· Where are

19· ·the costs to the county in services?· Why was the

20· ·original HCA in 2014 written behind closed doors with

21· ·Shawn Griffin, Wilmot's attorney, having a say?

22· ·Wilmot paid for the CGR report relied upon to create

23· ·the CMP, which in effect creates a biassed outcome.

24· · · · · · · ·The plan fails to address any social

25· ·impact mitigation other than what is required by New
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·2· ·York State Gaming Commission Laws.· It seriously

·3· ·underestimates the cost to our tax-paying base in

·4· ·regard to the student population impacts, school

·5· ·programs and subsidized programs, all of which will

·6· ·cost our county and nearby counties as well.

·7· · · · · · · ·The majority of casino jobs are listed as

·8· ·low-wage jobs, which will impact costs for services

·9· ·and inevitably create significant costs to our county,

10· ·extra costs to the schools, and extra costs ultimately

11· ·to the people of Seneca County and the region.

12· · · · · · · ·Tyre is the only town that receives any

13· ·shared gaming tax revenue, which is guaranteed to be

14· ·2 million dollars a year, but the town is so small

15· ·that other nearby towns, who will likely experience

16· ·impacts, get no money from the taxes.· It would be

17· ·irresponsible for you to give away our tax dollars to

18· ·Wilmot.

19· · · · · · · ·So in response to a tax break for Wilmot's

20· ·project, the risk to taxpayers is too great.  I

21· ·request that you get further studies that include

22· ·these costs per student, costs to our social services

23· ·and keep 100 percent of our tax money in order to

24· ·protect our community.· Wilmot claims lower taxes.

25· ·Make him prove it and give the taxpayers the full

27

http://www.alliancecourtreporting.net/


·1· · · · · · · · ·P U B L I C· ·H E A R I N G

·2· ·benefit.· No tax breaks for Wilmot.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Richard Barner.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. BARNER:· Hello.· My name is Richard

·5· ·Barner, and I'm a resident of Tyre and a Seneca County

·6· ·and Waterloo School taxpayer.

·7· · · · · · · ·I'm here today to speak on behalf of the

·8· ·Financial Assistance Application before us tonight for

·9· ·the proposed Lago Casino.

10· · · · · · · ·Wilmot's casino doesn't qualify.· It

11· ·doesn't matter what their representatives and lawyers

12· ·try to call "a project."· It's a casino anyway you

13· ·look at it.· Just because they reference wishful

14· ·reasons in their attachments to their application

15· ·doesn't make it so.

16· · · · · · · ·Wilmot's Lago Casino is not a project as

17· ·it must be under the statute for the IDA to approve

18· ·benefits.· Lago's insistence that this is, in fact, a

19· ·project does not make it so, and an amended petition

20· ·which you have a copy of in the records tonight lays

21· ·out the reasons.· Still applicable here why it is not

22· ·a project.· So the IDA is acting unlawfully outside of

23· ·its jurisdiction.

24· · · · · · · ·Thank you for listening.

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Betty Steele.
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·2· · · · · · · ·MS. STEELE:· Good evening.· My name is

·3· ·Betty Steele and I reside in Waterloo.

·4· · · · · · · ·I am opposed to the proposed incentive

·5· ·package offered to Wilmorite and the other developers

·6· ·of the proposed Lago Resort and Casino Seneca County

·7· ·IDA.· As a taxpayer in Seneca County for over 40

·8· ·years, I resent the fact that Tom Wilmot and Wilmorite

·9· ·literally bulldozed its way into Seneca County and the

10· ·Town of Tyre, a rural, agricultural region, by luring

11· ·politicians and residents with the promise of more

12· ·jobs and lower taxes due to increased revenue to the

13· ·town and county from the proposed casino.

14· · · · · · · ·I believe the purpose of tax incentives is

15· ·to lure new businesses to a specific area.· Tom Wilmot

16· ·chose Seneca County and specifically Tyre for the

17· ·development of a casino and hardly needed any

18· ·incentives to do so.

19· · · · · · · ·In fact, several times Mr. Wilmot has

20· ·stated he really doesn't need the proposed incentives.

21· ·Which is it?· Does he or doesn't he?

22· · · · · · · ·In the past the IDA has ignored requests

23· ·by residents to not give tax incentives to the casino

24· ·project, especially after the application for the

25· ·casino was submitted to the Gaming Commission for

29

http://www.alliancecourtreporting.net/


·1· · · · · · · · ·P U B L I C· ·H E A R I N G

·2· ·approval and has subsequently been approved for

·3· ·consideration of a license by the commission.

·4· · · · · · · ·I can't image that a full financial

·5· ·statement would not be submitted as part of the

·6· ·application process for the proposed casino affirming

·7· ·that finances for the project are secure.· If that's

·8· ·the case, there should be no question that tax

·9· ·incentives are not needed for this project especially

10· ·from such an economically depressed area as Seneca

11· ·County has been portrayed.

12· · · · · · · ·Are you sure Seneca County taxpayers can

13· ·afford this?· I'm not sure.· On Sunday, November 29th,

14· ·an article in the Finger Lakes Times stated that the

15· ·current offer for incentives is expected to be the

16· ·same as the first offer that was approved by the IDA

17· ·in February.· That same offer was going to be

18· ·reaffirmed by the IDA three weeks ago but was tabled.

19· · · · · · · ·So I take it that this new deal is the

20· ·same lucrative incentive package that was conceived by

21· ·Attorney Shawn Griffin working behind the scenes for

22· ·both sides of the negotiating table as attorney for

23· ·both the IDA and Wilmorite.· Doesn't that make this

24· ·supposedly "new deal" as blatant a conflict of

25· ·interest as the first one?· I believe it does.
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·2· · · · · · · ·Thank you for your time.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Dagmar Nearpass.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. NEARPASS:· Good evening.· I'd just

·5· ·like you to know that I am opposed to any and all

·6· ·financial breaks for Wilmorite from the IDA.

·7· · · · · · · ·I'm also submitting a copy of all the

·8· ·comments from the first public hearing on

·9· ·January 29th.· Please include these in the records of

10· ·this hearing.

11· · · · · · · ·Also is a copy of the Amended Article 78

12· ·Petition against the IDA, for the record.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Alison Stokes.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. STOKES:· My name is Alison Stokes, and

15· ·I'm from Seneca Falls and I want to begin by

16· ·protesting a five-minute rule.· It's an extremely,

17· ·extremely important issue that we're discussing and to

18· ·limit unnecessarily when, I would assume we'll be out

19· ·of here in less than an hour, I have at least 7 or 8

20· ·minutes prepared and I ask that you hear everything I

21· ·have to say.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· We're fine.

23· · · · · · · ·MS. STOKES:· Thank you.· Thank you very

24· ·much.· I appreciate that.

25· · · · · · · ·I begin my remarks tonight by briefly
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·2· ·mentioning my experience of this morning, because it

·3· ·is relevant to the subject of IDA assistance for the

·4· ·proposed 425,000 -- million dollar -- 425 million

·5· ·dollar gambling casino in the tiny rural community of

·6· ·Tyre.

·7· · · · · · · ·On Thursday I celebrated Thanksgiving with

·8· ·my family in Virginia.· Today I drove home from

·9· ·Williamsport, Pennsylvania, up Route 15 and through

10· ·Watkins Glenn where I picked up Route 414.· Driving up

11· ·the east side of Seneca Lake was stunningly beautiful

12· ·with clear blue sky and deep blue water.· The road in

13· ·Seneca County brought me past corn and hay fields,

14· ·barns and silos and many, many vineyards.

15· · · · · · · ·For a short time Route 414 merged with 96

16· ·and I thought of the Seneca County IDA controlled land

17· ·near there with the white deer herds so many people

18· ·from near and far are trying valiantly to protect for

19· ·ego tourism.· There is no other like it in the entire

20· ·world.

21· · · · · · · ·A short time later I passed a team of four

22· ·horses pulling a plow driven by an Amish farmer, and

23· ·trotting down the road near there was an Amish

24· ·horse-drawn buggy.· There were cows and pastures,

25· ·laundry on lines, farm stands with open signs,
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·2· ·greenhouses, a wind turbine, and even a small roadside

·3· ·shed with a solar panel.

·4· · · · · · · ·Over the canal bridge, I entered the

·5· ·Seneca Falls Heritage Area, turned left on Fall Street

·6· ·and passed the Hall of Fame and Women's Rights

·7· ·National Park.· There were restaurants, the Gould

·8· ·Hotel, Microtel and after turning north on 414 were

·9· ·the Hampton Inn and Holiday Inn.· Whatever it might

10· ·have been in days past, it is a place that is in --

11· ·not in economic distress or desperately in need of the

12· ·economic assistance from a casino developer.

13· · · · · · · ·As I drove north toward Tyre on 414, dead

14· ·ahead was a Seneca mountain of garbage, misnamed

15· ·Seneca Meadows, and often emitting noxious odors.  I

16· ·passed the huge Petro and finally to the newly paved

17· ·entrance to the yet-to-be-licensed gambling casino.

18· · · · · · · ·Tom Wilmot and the IDA claim that Lago

19· ·will be a destination resort, and this setting beside

20· ·the Thruway, overlooking Petro, down street from a

21· ·smelly landfill, that will never happen.· Amidst the

22· ·beauty of Seneca County, only a gambling casino will

23· ·draw patrons there, a quick on and off the Thruway for

24· ·many of them.

25· · · · · · · ·The front page story in Today's Finger
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·2· ·Lakes Times is relevant here too.· The headline reads:

·3· ·"Horn To New York City Mayor.· Don't Send Trash Here."

·4· · · · · · · ·Reporter David Shaw quotes from a letter

·5· ·written ten days ago from the General City Manager

·6· ·Matt Horn to Mayor de Blasio.· Horn writes that the

·7· ·proposed $3.3 billion transaction between New York

·8· ·City and Seneca Meadows, quote, "Has the potential to

·9· ·destroy the brand that the Finger Lakes, Geneva and

10· ·our sister communities have worked so hard to develop

11· ·and preserve."

12· · · · · · · ·Indeed, as I traveled Route 414 I thought

13· ·about how all that we had worked so hard to develop

14· ·and preserve is threatened by Tom Wilmot's gambling

15· ·casino.· By giving him taxpayer-provided incentives,

16· ·the IDA is in collusion with him.· The IDA is

17· ·comprised of a board made up of -- almost exclusively

18· ·of men who are not elected.· They are not

19· ·representative of the people and not accountable to

20· ·the people.

21· · · · · · · ·Moreover the board has no interest in

22· ·listening to the testimony of opponents to the

23· ·gambling casino.· I learned this from your

24· ·January 29th, 2015, hearing on the first incentive

25· ·resolution for Tom Wilmot.· Only one board member and
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·2· ·the executive director attended that hearing.· They

·3· ·then ignored the majority testimony against the

·4· ·proposed incentive resolution.· The Seneca County IDA

·5· ·now, once again, wrongfully proposes to give public

·6· ·assistance to a wealthy man for his private benefit.

·7· · · · · · · ·From the incredible amount of money he has

·8· ·spent promoting Lago, it is more than clear that Tom

·9· ·Wilmot needs absolutely no incentive to build a

10· ·gambling casino in Seneca County.

11· · · · · · · ·The IDA was formed to bring industrial

12· ·development to Seneca County using incentives.· It was

13· ·not formed for promoting tourism.· This is an

14· ·important point.· The Seneca County Board of

15· ·Supervisors at its last meeting, once again,

16· ·designated the Chamber of Commerce as the County's

17· ·TPA, or Tourism Promotion Agency.· I want to read to

18· ·you what the executive director of the chamber told an

19· ·interviewer in the summer of 2013, about two years

20· ·ago.· This was at a time when the issue of bringing

21· ·Vegas-style casinos to the state was slated to be on

22· ·the ballot in the fall, and it was widely being

23· ·publicly discussed, including in Seneca County and

24· ·including at the Chamber of Commerce.

25· · · · · · · ·Jeff Shiplee spoke with the founder of the
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·2· ·Institute for American Values, David Blankenhorn.

·3· ·Blankenhorn recalls their conversation and Mr. Shiplee

·4· ·is saying:· Most Seneca County merchants and business

·5· ·leaders oppose casino expansion.· Casino gambling

·6· ·impoverishes people, he said, and we already have poor

·7· ·people.

·8· · · · · · · ·The interviewer goes on to say, he

·9· ·reported a strong general feeling against

10· ·Indian-sponsored gambling in the region, and said that

11· ·a casino gambling sponsored by New York State would

12· ·not help, and would likely hurt the local businesses

13· ·whose owners are Chamber of Commerce members.

14· · · · · · · ·People going to casinos means those people

15· ·are not going to our restaurants and not going to our

16· ·shops.· He also pointed out that many leaders in

17· ·politics and business now stress the importance of

18· ·sustainability.· They regularly urge sustainable

19· ·agriculture, sustainable economic growth and

20· ·sustainable business models.· Casinos move us in the

21· ·opposite direction.· Casinos are not sustainable

22· ·anything.

23· · · · · · · ·If you want to read this conversation,

24· ·it's in Blankenhorn's report:· "New York's Promise.

25· ·Why sponsoring casinos is a regressive policy unworthy
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·2· ·of a great state."· Mr. Shiplee had this exactly right

·3· ·before he flip-flopped.

·4· · · · · · · ·Thank you.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Desiree Dawley.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. DAWLEY:· Good evening.· My name is

·7· ·Desiree Dawley, and I'm here tonight to oppose the

·8· ·financial assistance package, essentially a repeat of

·9· ·the January through February application.

10· · · · · · · ·I would like to address a few questionable

11· ·aspects of this, quote, "deal."· I would like this

12· ·board to explain the discounted IDA fee.· What is the

13· ·reason for giving one of the richest developers in the

14· ·country a discount on the fee, because Mr. Wilmot's

15· ·lawyer is the IDA's regular lawyer, maybe -- I

16· ·suggest -- may I suggest that may have caused some

17· ·undue influence.

18· · · · · · · ·Banishing Shawn Griffin and Harris Beach

19· ·from the new application does not cure the conflict.

20· ·This is essentially the same old deal that his firm

21· ·negotiated for Lago while counsel to the IDA.· The

22· ·ethical taint remains.

23· · · · · · · ·The IDA was created to support economic

24· ·development in Seneca County.· The IDA fee is

25· ·essential to supporting those efforts, and the largest
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·2· ·project and associated tax breaks in the county's

·3· ·history could mean grants or loans to small businesses

·4· ·and numerous other ways to support other people of

·5· ·this county.

·6· · · · · · · ·But instead this board has given Wilmot a

·7· ·75 percent discount.· Why?· What's the reason?

·8· ·There's no mention of any need for this discount in

·9· ·the state application, so why are you giving it to

10· ·him?· It appears that the only one getting lower taxes

11· ·from this casino project is Mr. Wilmot's Lago project.

12· ·His signs claiming lower taxes should be changed to

13· ·"lower taxes for Lago."

14· · · · · · · ·The whole redo is entirely disappointing

15· ·and a real slap in the face to area taxpayers that

16· ·were sold something very different than what we see

17· ·here tonight.

18· · · · · · · ·And I hope you, the IDA, will say no to

19· ·the assistance for Wilmot's casino project this time.

20· · · · · · · ·Thank you.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· James Mitchell.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. MITCHELL:· My name is James Mitchell.

23· ·I live at 1691 Route 336, Waterloo, New York.

24· · · · · · · ·First I want to thank you for letting me

25· ·speak.· I feel the incentive package for Lago is
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·2· ·crazy, ridiculous, not necessary.· If they want to

·3· ·come here, pay their own way -- excuse me -- and not

·4· ·give them 45 million dollars tax break.· The

·5· ·incentives are insane, and the taxpayers foot the

·6· ·bill.

·7· · · · · · · ·I'm concerned about all of the taxpayers,

·8· ·me and all the taxpayers in Seneca County.· They're

·9· ·getting a gold mine, and we're getting the

10· ·you-know-what.

11· · · · · · · ·Thank you very much.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· James Dawley III.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. DAWLEY:· Thank you for allowing me to

14· ·speak tonight.· One thing, my name is James Dawley

15· ·III.

16· · · · · · · ·Once again Lago appears to be relying on

17· ·the false appraisal on which it previously relied.· We

18· ·have provided an analysis from certified appraiser of

19· ·the many deficiencies in that appraisal report.

20· · · · · · · ·In light of that report, if this board

21· ·approves these benefits, it will be the epitome of

22· ·arbitrary and capricious decision.

23· · · · · · · ·I'm resubmitting a copy of our expert's

24· ·report for this board's review, and please include

25· ·this in the record for this hearing.
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·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Jeffery Dawley.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. DAWLEY:· Thank you for letting me

·4· ·speak tonight.· My name is Jeffery Dawley and I'm from

·5· ·Waterloo -- taxpayer of Waterloo Village.· And mostly

·6· ·a teacher and I'm concerned about these tax breaks and

·7· ·how they're going to affect our county/town and then

·8· ·how it's going to effect schools as well.

·9· · · · · · · ·I made comments at the previous hearing as

10· ·well, and I still think it's confusing that we're

11· ·trying to give tax breaks or incentives to a company

12· ·that's coming here on their own volition to make

13· ·money.· I mean, if they think that they're going to be

14· ·making money based on all these projections and things

15· ·that they've offered us, why would we need to give

16· ·them any incentive to come here?· It's insane.

17· · · · · · · ·Anyway, basically a re-duration of what I

18· ·told you guys before.· The assistance applications for

19· ·tax breaks, etc., for Wilmorite should be scrutinized

20· ·no differently than any other applicant.· Does it or

21· ·does it not meet the New York State agency criteria?

22· ·A statement from the former chairman of the board of

23· ·supervisors in regard to the August 13, 2013, minutes

24· ·calling for the IDA agency to re-evaluate its -- lost

25· ·my place.· I'm sorry.
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·2· · · · · · · ·A statement from the former chairman of

·3· ·the board of supervisors in regards to the August 13,

·4· ·2013, minutes calling for the IDA agency to

·5· ·re-evaluate its policies for financial support in

·6· ·regard to Seneca Meadows, Inc., it's the same thing.

·7· ·We need to have more scrutiny on these situations.

·8· · · · · · · ·As a taxpayer I don't feel like handing

·9· ·out my hard-earned taxpayer money towards something

10· ·that's not going to benefit us as a people.

11· · · · · · · ·While Seneca County taxpayers could use

12· ·100 percent of the estimated tax money much more than

13· ·Wilmorite, and if they will not be taking their casino

14· ·project to another county or state, nor will there be

15· ·any job losses if this casino application is not

16· ·granted, the basis for the IDA mission -- I'm sorry --

17· ·which is the basis for the IDA mission to grant tax

18· ·incentives.

19· · · · · · · ·Words of support from Robert Shiplee, the

20· ·first time Wilmot sought tax incentives from the IDA

21· ·raised the necessity of this project to offset the

22· ·delinquent Indian property taxes owed to this

23· ·county/town of Seneca Falls.· If this is such a

24· ·burden, why would he or any other legislature be in

25· ·favor of the tax breaks at all, especially from a
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·2· ·project that needs no enticing and is going anywhere

·3· ·else?

·4· · · · · · · ·Senator Nozzolio garnering quite a sum of

·5· ·New York State taxpayer money to the tune of

·6· ·1.2 million dollars to offset the loss of the tax

·7· ·revenue which was given to this county.· Shouldn't we

·8· ·be using that money to help lower taxes for the Seneca

·9· ·Falls taxpayers burdened by the Cayuga Nation land

10· ·issue?· Instead it has been used for projects in

11· ·Waterloo, and for the 318/414 sewer line which likely

12· ·will benefit the casino project.· Why are we paying

13· ·for Wilmot's private corporate monopoly?· If licensed,

14· ·Wilmot will be guaranteed its own monopoly on

15· ·restaurants, hotel patrons and his profit from all

16· ·costs gambling empire.

17· · · · · · · ·I question how you can give away, not

18· ·collect, taxpayer dollars that should be used for the

19· ·impacts to our community from the supposed increase of

20· ·tourism, traffic accidents, crime, and especially the

21· ·impact that has not been well-documented in regard to

22· ·problem gambling.

23· · · · · · · ·The addition of a potential burden to

24· ·Seneca County, casino related, should be a factor that

25· ·taxpayers shouldn't have to pay for, and tax abatement
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·2· ·means much less money into taxes, a benefit only to

·3· ·Wilmorite but a detriment to taxpayers.

·4· · · · · · · ·I also know that Wilmorite's lawyers,

·5· ·Harris Beach, have been historically involved with

·6· ·this Seneca County IDA agency.· This conflict should

·7· ·be a public issue.· There will be formal complaints

·8· ·and an investigation will be raised on behalf of this

·9· ·community if people in Seneca County opposed to the

10· ·granting of any tax breaks for Wilmorite/Whitetail

11· ·414, LLC, or any agent of Wilmorite or their

12· ·affiliates, gets stuck with the county IDA agency

13· ·cutting the taxpayer out of the benefit of 45 million

14· ·dollars for no apparent reason.

15· · · · · · · ·Please hear the people of your county.

16· ·The taxpayers' money is not for Wilmorite's gain.

17· ·None of the county has agreed to give them anything,

18· ·and it's up to you to listen.· That's what this public

19· ·hearing is for.· Not just an exercise in futility.

20· · · · · · · ·Thank you.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Michael Davis.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. DAVIS:· I'd like to thank the board

23· ·for hearing me tonight.· I want to bring back the

24· ·focus to what this project will bring to this area and

25· ·why I would agree with you if you were to hand these
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·2· ·tax breaks over.

·3· · · · · · · ·1,800 construction jobs.· We have still

·4· ·been waiting for them.· They should have been on the

·5· ·way.· That's a huge chunk of construction in this

·6· ·area, not to mention the indirect jobs you get to put

·7· ·in this.· And I understand what you're allowed to put

·8· ·in theses as far as what kind of benefits you'll show.

·9· · · · · · · ·The indirect spinoff jobs from the

10· ·construction market alone, when 1,800 people will be

11· ·massive.· The $42,000 average wage is far from a low

12· ·wage in this area.· That is more of a middle-class

13· ·wage in this area.· It's a very good wage, and it's

14· ·something that should definitely be looked at when

15· ·you're making this decision.

16· · · · · · · ·You're protecting the schools by bringing

17· ·this here.· I've heard time and time again, well, the

18· ·schools are losing out.· There's nothing there right

19· ·now that funds these schools.· Anything is better than

20· ·nothing.· And you cannot afford not to.· This area

21· ·needs some sort of economic development, and I'm

22· ·100 percent for helping it anyway we can.

23· · · · · · · ·Thank you.

24· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Linda Ochs.

25· · · · · · · ·MS. OCHS:· Good evening.· My name is Linda
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·2· ·Ochs, O-C-H-S.

·3· · · · · · · ·It's hard to get a man to understand when

·4· ·his salary depends on him not understanding.· Think

·5· ·about that for a second.

·6· · · · · · · ·And that's kind of what this project --

·7· ·this definitely applies to this project.· This is the

·8· ·second review you've done, and looking over the first

·9· ·one and the amendments that you guys went back and

10· ·supposedly did, things have not changed and you really

11· ·have not listened to the people that live here and

12· ·that are going to be here.· A lot of the jobs and

13· ·stuff that we're talking about will be here very

14· ·shortly and be gone.

15· · · · · · · ·You have my previous comments, and can

16· ·they be put on the record as well?· Is that something

17· ·that we do?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· They would be there because

19· ·of somebody who left the prior comments.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. OCHS:· Okay.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· They'll be there.

22· · · · · · · ·MS. OCHS:· Okay.· And I wish to reiterate

23· ·those comments and what other people have stated

24· ·tonight as well.

25· · · · · · · ·This casino project should not receive a
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·2· ·dime of our tax dollars to make this project happen.

·3· ·Wilmot has said publicly he didn't need or want our

·4· ·money for this project, and that kind of let people

·5· ·feel like, okay, we don't have to worry.· They're not

·6· ·going to be grabbing our tax dollars and making a

·7· ·bigger fortune than what they already we're planning

·8· ·on.

·9· · · · · · · ·We shouldn't be making rich people with

10· ·less than outstanding financial and project

11· ·accomplishments that do not hold true for this

12· ·project.· We cannot be giving people money making them

13· ·richer, when we don't even have a guarantee that the

14· ·taxpayers of Seneca County will not end up holding the

15· ·bag for his loans or any other financial debts that he

16· ·may incur.

17· · · · · · · ·In Seneca County the IDA has a track

18· ·record of using taxpayer dollars to finance 90 million

19· ·dollars worth of bonds and 5 million dollars in sales

20· ·tax exemptions for Seneca Meadows' expansion, in

21· ·addition to other things, they got the cleaning up the

22· ·gases and shipping them off to California using our

23· ·tax dollars as well.· And these are projects that

24· ·probably would have occurred without IDA incentive

25· ·anyway.
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·2· · · · · · · ·Now they voted to give away 45.3 million

·3· ·more of our money in tax incentives.· This time to

·4· ·Wilmorite, a wealthy corporation that owns shopping

·5· ·malls throughout New York State and whose gain comes

·6· ·at the expense of higher taxes for others, including

·7· ·those more deserving.

·8· · · · · · · ·What's worse, as outlined by Alison

·9· ·Stokes, Finger Lakes Times, February 25, 2015, is that

10· ·these IDA payments to Wilmorite would last for a

11· ·period of 20 years, effectively turning county

12· ·taxpayers into cosigners on a long-term loan for a

13· ·project that banks apparently deem too risky to

14· ·approve on its own merits.

15· · · · · · · ·In other words, will taxpayers be stuck

16· ·with picking up the tab as they did for JP Morgan and

17· ·other too-big-to-fail banks?

18· · · · · · · ·As David Cay Johnston, a Pulitzer

19· ·Prize-winning reporter and author and three books on

20· ·financial inequality said, "IDA and other state and

21· ·local corporate for welfare now cost $900 a year for

22· ·every U.S. family of four."

23· · · · · · · ·As reasoning for their actions, the Seneca

24· ·County IDA points to a report they commissioned that

25· ·concluded that the financial benefits to the town and
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·2· ·the county would be 1.8 billion, or a benefit-to-cost

·3· ·ratio of nearly 52 to 1.· But if the benefits are

·4· ·indeed this great, why don't the banks see it this

·5· ·way?· The only one who's guaranteed lower taxes out of

·6· ·this deal would be Wilmot.

·7· · · · · · · ·Perhaps they've read "Gambling in America

·8· ·Costs and Benefits," generally viewed as the

·9· ·definitive study of this topic wherein the author,

10· ·Earl Grinols, estimates every dollar of economic gain

11· ·from casinos is offset by $3 of economic loss.· The

12· ·story of recently failed casinos up and down the

13· ·Atlantic seaboard has been one of taxpayer bailouts,

14· ·whether it's to bailout the seller or to help fund a

15· ·new buyer.

16· · · · · · · ·The casinos cannot now operate without

17· ·government subsidies and have become welfare queens.

18· ·This is an ironic reversal of what was supposed to

19· ·produce jobs and income for residents who now instead

20· ·have to support the industry with their tax dollars.

21· · · · · · · ·And if Wilmorite were to default on the

22· ·loan, it wouldn't be the first time.· City of

23· ·Rochester officials say that Wilmorite was delinquent

24· ·for a period of over a decade in owing them over

25· ·20 million dollars.· See the Democrat & Chronicle

48

http://www.alliancecourtreporting.net/


·1· · · · · · · · ·P U B L I C· ·H E A R I N G

·2· ·Article 2/12/12.

·3· · · · · · · ·For these reasons and more Seneca County

·4· ·citizens on January 29th, myself included,

·5· ·overwhelming disapproved of any amount of taxpayer

·6· ·money being given to Wilmorite in what has become just

·7· ·one more of the IDA's growing list of sham public

·8· ·hearings that has endorsed and abetted by our elected

·9· ·county officials.

10· · · · · · · ·So here you are at it again after

11· ·previously ignoring the will of the people.· Shame on

12· ·you for even reconsidering giving my money to

13· ·Wilmorite.

14· · · · · · · ·Sincerely Glen Silver, President Concerned

15· ·Citizens of Seneca County.

16· · · · · · · ·And, again, it's time to listen to the

17· ·people.· You have to quit giving big money, big money,

18· ·because this county does not have it to give, and we

19· ·definitely need to protect the white deer and other

20· ·things that no one has in this area.

21· · · · · · · ·Thank you.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· David Schoonmaker.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. SCHOONMAKER:· Good evening.· My name

24· ·is David Schoonmaker.· I've lived in the Town of Tyre

25· ·for 54 years.
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·2· · · · · · · ·To me the idea of giving a billionaire

·3· ·tens of millions of dollars is absolutely ridiculous.

·4· ·Why would we do this?· Why would we even consider

·5· ·giving this amount of money to a business who is only

·6· ·going to create empty bank accounts and nothing more.

·7· · · · · · · ·Thank you.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Laurel Shoemaker.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. SHOEMAKER:· Good evening.· I'm Laurel

10· ·Shoemaker, resident of the Town of Phelps, and I do

11· ·apologize for not being here when you first opened up

12· ·your meeting.

13· · · · · · · ·Are you all the IDA, or are there more of

14· ·you?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· We have one other board

16· ·member with us tonight.

17· · · · · · · ·MS. SHOEMAKER:· Thank you.

18· · · · · · · ·Our family resides in a neighboring town

19· ·to the proposed site of the Wilmorite casino.· We are

20· ·strongly opposed to this project, its location and any

21· ·tax incentive packages that might be in consideration

22· ·for it.· It will undermine not only Tyre, but the

23· ·surrounding areas' economy, as well, and you've heard

24· ·over and over, "blah-blah blah-blah."

25· · · · · · · ·But I would like to reference IDA Act GML,
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·2· ·Article 18-A.· You're probably familiar with it.· It

·3· ·is my understanding that casinos are not included in

·4· ·this act and, therefore, shouldn't be allowed, not

·5· ·even considered for any financial assistance.

·6· · · · · · · ·As far as the "centerpiece designation"

·7· ·reference to the attachment to the Lago application,

·8· ·Lago's casino location and the casino model

·9· ·disqualifies it from being a "tourism destination."

10· ·See IDA Article 18-A.

11· · · · · · · ·For location, the Lago project is nowhere

12· ·near any state line to attract out-of-state tourists.

13· ·And as for the casino model it relies on 50 to 70

14· ·percent of repeat customers to exist.· This percentage

15· ·of repeat customers would be locals frequenting this

16· ·locale, not out-of-towners.· Lago would be nothing

17· ·more than a convenience casino once the shine wears

18· ·off.

19· · · · · · · ·It's been mentioned at least one other

20· ·time this evening.· When you think of destination

21· ·resorts, what sights and sounds and smells come to

22· ·mind?· Well, typically, a dump, a truck stop, and the

23· ·New York State Thruway wouldn't be at the forefront of

24· ·your mind.

25· · · · · · · ·The Catskills, Sullivan Montreign Casino
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·2· ·location, is a true destination location of our state.

·3· ·This is the casino that Wilmot's attachment references

·4· ·at the bottom of page 3 when comparing the impacts and

·5· ·assessing financial assistance.· As vague as that all

·6· ·is, it's a poor comparison.· Sullivan County's

·7· ·Montreign Casino isn't stealing 50 to 70 percent of

·8· ·the patrons from the nearby gaming facilities as Lago

·9· ·would be -- being nothing more than another thruway

10· ·casino.

11· · · · · · · ·Multiple casinos within a 22 to 75-mile

12· ·radius of the proposed Lago location are already

13· ·readily available to those looking to patronize a

14· ·casino.· It seems one of the only true similarities

15· ·between the proposed Lago and the Montreign is the

16· ·search for tax breaks, and who doesn't like a good tax

17· ·break?

18· · · · · · · ·The proposed Lago casino has been

19· ·strategically placed to draw from the New York State

20· ·Thruway.· Every vehicle that would otherwise turn

21· ·right and enter our growing Finger Lakes region will

22· ·now go left to the casino.· The folks going off the

23· ·thruway will be drawn into Lago, its casino,

24· ·restaurants.· Not the restaurants in historic Seneca

25· ·Falls, and along the lakeside, nor the restaurants in

52

http://www.alliancecourtreporting.net/


·1· · · · · · · · ·P U B L I C· ·H E A R I N G

·2· ·Waterloo.

·3· · · · · · · ·The goal of casinos is keeping patrons

·4· ·there, as stated in the Town of Tyre's CGR report,

·5· ·page 22, and I quote, "The casinos' business model

·6· ·relies on retaining customers on site."· That doesn't

·7· ·sound like a statement reflecting genuine concern for

·8· ·the economic development and growth of the surrounding

·9· ·area.

10· · · · · · · ·This IDA deal has been tainted by

11· ·conflicts of interest since Shawn Griffin, Wilmorite's

12· ·counsel, worked this deal while acting as counsel for

13· ·the Seneca County IDA.· Meanwhile Lago did not

14· ·disclose any tax breaks in their application, selling

15· ·their project as being a taxpayer.· They were going to

16· ·be this taxpayer.· This can be found in the Fayette

17· ·Town Board meeting minutes.· FOILed documents reveal

18· ·that at this time lucrative tax breaks were being

19· ·negotiated for Wilmot.

20· · · · · · · ·So we heard this word used earlier on a

21· ·couple of different occasions, in hopes of this not

22· ·being futility so for all of these reasons the gaming

23· ·commission would do well to not award a license to

24· ·Lago.· And for the purposes of this evening, with all

25· ·due respect, it would behoove you, the IDA, to be
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·2· ·gutsy and discard any inclination that you may have

·3· ·had already.· Do not give any tax breaks or incentives

·4· ·to Wilmorite Casino Lago.

·5· · · · · · · ·I implore you to just say no to Lago.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· Tina MacDonald.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. MacDONALD:· Hi.· Thank you for your

·8· ·time tonight.

·9· · · · · · · ·First off, I disagree with everything that

10· ·she just said.· That's my opinion and everyone is

11· ·entitled to their own opinion.

12· · · · · · · ·I support the IDA, Seneca County, the Town

13· ·of Tyre and the Lago project.· It's what Seneca County

14· ·needs.· We need to increase jobs.· The Finger Lakes is

15· ·a prime destination for tourism.· We have wineries; we

16· ·have lakes, a perfect location between Rochester and

17· ·Syracuse, Buffalo, Albany.· Why not come here?· We

18· ·live here.· We see how beautiful it is.· Why not share

19· ·this with other people?

20· · · · · · · ·Lago will bring business and business

21· ·brings more business, and you, as the IDA, know what's

22· ·best for Seneca County.

23· · · · · · · ·Seneca County supports Lago and all the

24· ·other projects that will be created because of Lago.

25· ·The future of Tyre and Seneca County needs this.
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·2· · · · · · · ·Thank you for your time.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ARONSON:· That concludes all the

·4· ·speakers that have signed up.

·5· · · · · · · ·Is there anybody who didn't have a chance

·6· ·to sign up who would like to speak?

·7· · · · · · · ·With that, then, we'll close this public

·8· ·hearing.

·9· · · · · · · ·Thank you very much for coming out

10· ·tonight.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·(TIME:· 7:10 p.m.)

12· · · · · · · · · · · ·*· · ·*· · ·*
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·2· · · · · · · · · C E R T I F I C A T I O N
· · ·STATE OF NEW YORK:
·3· ·COUNTY OF ONTARIO:

·4· · · · · · · ·I, TAMMY B. FIGLER, do hereby certify that

·5· ·I reported in machine shorthand the above-styled

·6· ·cause; and that the foregoing pages were produced by

·7· ·computer-aided transcription (CAT) under my personal

·8· ·supervision and constitute a true and accurate record

·9· ·of the testimony in this proceeding;

10· · · · · · · ·I further certify that I am not an

11· ·attorney or counsel of any parties, nor a relative or

12· ·employee of any attorney or counsel connected with the

13· ·action, nor financially interested in the action;

14· · · · · · · ·WITNESS my hand in the City of Farmington,

15· ·County of Ontario, State of New York.
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21

· · ·TAMMY B. FIGLER

24· ·Freelance Court Reporter and

· · ·Notary Public No. 01FI4573724

25· ·in and for Ontario County, New York
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EXHIBIT B 
TAX AGREEMENT PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 
SCHOOL 

YEAR 
COUNTY 
& TOWN 

YEAR 

TAX 
PAYMENT 

TAX 
PAYMENT 

DATE 
2017/2018 2018 $685,000 June 15, 

2017 
2018/2019 2019 $885,000 June 15, 

2018 
2019/2020 2020 $985,000 June 15, 

2019 
2020/2021 2021 $1,085,000 June 15, 

2020 
2021/2022 2022 $1,185,000 June 15, 

2021 
2022/2023 2023 $1,285,000 June 15, 

2022 
2023/2024 2024 $1,385,000 June 15, 

2023 
2024/2025 2025 $1,485,000 June 15, 

2024 
2025/2026 2026 $1,585,000 June 15, 

2025 
2026/2027 2027 $1,685,000 June 15, 

2026 
2027/2028 2028 $2,321,690 June 15, 

2027 
2028/2029 2029 $2,372,424 June 15, 

2028 
2029/2030 2030 $2,424,172 June 15, 

2029 
2030/2031 2031 $2,476,956 June 15, 

2030 
2031/2032 2032 $2,530,795 June 15, 

2031 
2032/2033 2033 $2,585,711 June 15, 

2032 
2033/2034 2034 $2,641,725 June 15, 

2033 
2034/2035 2035 $2,698,859 June 15, 

2034 
2035/2036 2036 $2,757,137 June 15, 

2035 
2036/2037 2037 $2,816,579 June 15, 

2036 
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